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Dear Madam/Sir
Exposure Draft of proposed amendments to IAS 24 Relationships with the State

On behalf of the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG) | am writing to
comment on the Exposure Draft of proposed amendments to IAS 24 Relationships with the
State (the ED). This letter is submitted in EFRAG’s capacity of contributing to IASB’s due
process and does not necessarily indicate the conclusions that would be reached in its
capacity of advising the European Commission on endorsement of the definitive
interpretations/amendments on the issues.

The ED contains proposals for amendments to exempt entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by a state from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24 in
relation to transactions with other state-controlled entities. It also contains amendments to
the definition of a related party.

We agree in principle with the amendments proposed, but have a few detailed concerns
which we have set out in the appendix to this letter. To summarise:

o Although we welcome the IASB’s continued efforts to rationalise IAS 24’s definition of
a related party, we do not agree with the amendment being proposed in this ED that
extends the definition beyond that proposed in the previous ED.

o Although we recognise that the IASB is not inviting comment on the definition of ‘a
State’, we have set out in the appendix a number of examples of problems that we
believe will arise from its application in practice. We think the definition and
supporting material might therefore be in need of some further work. We think that
every jurisdiction has its own way of organising state-related activities and
organisations, and that a definition needs to be found that achieves broadly the same
result (in terms of the scope of the exemption proposed in the ED) regardless of
precisely how such activities and organisations are structured. We are not convinced
that this is the case with the current definition and supporting material.
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We hope that you find our comments helpful. If you wish to discuss them further, please do
not hesitate to contact Frederiek Vermeulen or myself.

Yours sincerely

Stig Enevoldsen
EFRAG, Chairman

Page 2



EFRAG'’s Draft Comment Letter on ED Relationships with the State

Appendix
EFRAG’s detailed comments on the ED Relationships with the State

Question 1 — State-controlled entities

This exposure draft proposes an exemption from disclosures in IAS 24 for entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the state in specified
circumstances.

Do you agree with the proposed exemption, and with the disclosures that entities must
provide when the exemption applies? Why, or why not? If not, what would you propose
instead and why?

1

We agree that, when two entities are related only because they are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same state, the disclosure required by
paragraph 17 of IAS 24 can be extremely onerous. However:

(a) under the proposals in the ED, if two entities are related parties of each other for
several reasons, only one of which is that they are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same state, transactions between the two
entities would fall within the scope of the proposed exemption. We do not
believe that is appropriate and think such an exemption would weaken IAS 24
significantly. We prefer the approach proposed in the previous ED, which was
that the exemption was available only if the only reason the two entities are
related because they are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the same state.

(b) we think that in theory, if one or more material transactions between two related
parties are influenced in some way by the existence of the relationship between
the parties, that is useful information and should ideally be disclosed in the
financial statements. On the other hand, if the transactions are not influenced
by the existence of the relationship, there is little informational value in them.
We note that, although this was the approach proposed in the previous ED,
under the latest proposals it is not relevant whether the transactions have been
influenced by the existence of the relationship. We think this is a pity—because
it means that potentially useful information will not be disclosed—although we
also recognise that our preferred approach raises practical issues that the IASB
has concluded cannot easily be addressed without damaging the usefulness of
the exemption itself. We therefore accept the proposal in the ED that the
exemption should be available regardless of whether the parties or terms of the
transactions have been affected by the related relationship.

The ED proposes extending the exemption that was proposed in the previous ED so
that it applies not only to state-controlled entities but also to other relations with the
state. EFRAG supports this proposal, which it sees as a logical consequence of the
exemption for state-controlled entities.

Under the current proposal in amended paragraph 17B(b), an entity that is exempt
from providing the ‘normal’ related party disclosures because of the proposed
exemption would have to disclose the types of individually or collectively significant
transactions with the state or related party entity involved that have been entered into,
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together with a qualitative or quantitative indicator of their extent. Our understanding
at the time of the 2007 ED was that the main reason for introducing the proposed
exemption was to make it unnecessary for reporting entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by a state to identify entities that are related
parties solely because they too are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by that same state. We think this is a worthy objective. However, the
disclosures the proposed amendment to paragraph 17B(b) would require is
inconsistent with this objective because the reporting entity has to identify the entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same state that controls,
jointly controls or significantly influences the reporting entity in order to provide the
disclosures required.

On a point of drafting, we think that the example at the end of paragraph BC8(a)
should refer to significant influence by the same state. Two entities would not be
related parties simply because they are subject to significant influence by different
states.

Question 2 — Definition of a related party

The exposure draft published in 2007 proposed a revised definition of a related party. The
Board proposes to amend that definition further to ensure that two entities are treated as
related to each other whenever a person or a third entity has joint control over one entity
and that person (or a close member of that person’s family) or the third entity has joint
control or significant influence over the other entity or has significant voting power in it.

Do you agree with this proposal? Why or why not? If not, what would you propose instead
and why?

5

EFRAG welcomes the IASB’s continued efforts to rationalise IAS 24’s definition of a
related party. However, we do not agree with the amendment being proposed in this
case.

(@) We do not agree with the suggestion included in proposed new paragraph
9(b)(ix) that Person A (being a person or a close member of that person’s family
that has significant influence or significant voting power in the reporting entity) is
a related party of person B (being a person that has joint control over the
reporting entity). We agree that sometimes persons A and B will be related, but
not always.

(b) As we stated in our comment letter on the 2007 ED, we think it can be extremely
difficult for an entity to comply with a disclosure requirement that is based on an
expectation that it will have significant amounts of information about the private
lives and private affairs of individuals. In many cases the reporting entity will
need to rely on the co-operation of others to obtain the information it needs to
provide the disclosures, but in some cases it will be difficult to require the right
disclosures from those persons. In some other cases such requirements could
involve privacy infringement.
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Question 3 — Do you have any other comments on the proposals?

6

Paragraphs 9 and 11A of the 2007 ED explain that ‘a state’ is a national, regional or
local government, and the term is being used to refer to any governing jurisdiction that
has statutory or regulatory powers of government. Although the IASB is not inviting
comment on the definition of ‘a State’, we are worried about the practical application of
this definition. For example:

(@) Judging by the position in Europe, a number of different structures are used to
control (or influence) entities that are in effect state-controlled (or state-
influenced) entities. We are concerned that not all of those structures will result
in those entities being called state-controlled or state-influenced under the
definitions in the ED. For example, in some countries the entities are not
controlled or influenced by the government directly, but by an agency that is
neither strictly speaking a governmental body nor a private sector body. We
think such entities should fall within the scope of the exemption proposed in the
ED but are not sure that they do.

(b) We note that supranational governments (such as the European Union) are not
‘states’ as currently defined. Is that really the intention?

(c) We think that the proposed definition might also cause difficulties in practice
when applied to existing structures when several governments are working
together. Those will not always fall under the definition of ‘joint control’. For
example, a group or co-operation of municipalities holds (partially) a company.
We think that, as long as they have not transferred their statutory or regulatory
powers, they are not covered by the exemption. Again, it is not clear whether
the IASB has deliberately excluded such bodies from the scope of the definition.

(d) We think that the definition of a government as a governing jurisdiction with
statutory or regulatory competences might in certain jurisdictions also apply to
certain regulators that comprise market participants (as is sometimes the case
in, for example, the energy market). Was it in the intention that such entities
should be within the scope of the definition?

(e) The fact that the definition refers to ‘any governing jurisdiction that has statutory
or regulatory powers of government’ might need some clarification to ensure that
the exemption applies to all relations with that government and not only when
the government is actually using its statutory or regulatory powers.

(f) We also assume that it is not the IASB’s intention that the existence of state-
regulation would bring an entity within the scope of the term, yet as currently
drafted that appears possible.

In view of these examples of practicality issues that arise in applying the definition of
‘a State’, we think the definition and supporting material might need some further
work. Every jurisdiction has its own way of organising state-related activities and
organisations, and we think a definition needs to be found that achieves broadly the
same results (in terms of the scope of the exemption) regardless of precisely how
such activities and organisations are structured.
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